
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT 
840 West 11th Street 

Panama City, Florida 32401 
Telephone: (850) 248-8270 

Fax: (850) 248-8276 
January 20, 2023 

Prospective Respondents 

RE: Addendum #1 23-10 Traffic Signal Mast Arm Hardening Project 
HMGP 4399-119-R 

Please accept this as Addendum No. 1 for the above referenced 
solicitation. 

The questions due date is hereby extended to Friday, January 27, 2023 
at 5:00 pm Central Time. 

The Bid Deadline is hereby extended to Tuesday, February 7, 2023 at 
2:00 pm Central Time. 

The Wage Determination has been updated for this solicitation.  Please 
see the attached updated Wage Determination. 

The following questions have been received. The County’s answers follow 
in bold.

1. Were any Concept Plans prepared for the project for estimating 
purposes or as part of the Grant Application process? If so, would the 
County please provide those to the respondents.  No concept plans 
are available.  However, the attached governing Grant Application 
contains information and details useful for estimating purposes, 
and is provided for reference.

2. At several of the 14 intersections, the existing curb cut ramps are in 
need of repair. Is it the Contractor’s responsibility to repair these 
ramps?  Repair work to existing concrete curb cuts, ramps, 
landings, and sidewalk is not included as part of the project.  
However, such concrete work which is incidental to other work 
being conducted as part of the project is included, including any 
restoration/repair work that is necessary due to actions by the 
contractor, or as a result of construction activities.  It is 
incumbent upon the contractor prior to construction to document 
any preexisting damage to facilities or necessary repair work, 
prior to beginning the construction phase. 
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3. Will lighting at pedestrian crossings be required? Or upgraded to current FDOT 
Standards?  Installation of new lighting is not intended to be included as part of 
the project, with the exception that any existing lighting features shall be 
maintained.  For example, if luminaire attachments are present on existing 
concrete strain poles, then equivalent luminaire features shall be included on the 
replacement mast arm support structures.

4.  The previous contract advertisement (RFP 22-37) required that a new mast arm was 
to  be  located  in  every  quadrant  of  an  intersection,  with  horizontal  members  oriented 
perpendicular  to  their  associated  approaches  (i.e.,  no  diagonally  oriented  horizontal 
mast arm members). Is this a requirement of this contract (ITB 23-10)?  This question 
will require more time for internal discussion and review.  It will be answered in a  
future addenda.   

5. Does the County have a list of Minority-owned businesses that they can provide the 
prospective bidders?  Yes, please see the attached list of certified vendors. Bidders 
may also obtain additional certified vendors from the State of Florida Office of 
Supplier Diversity (https://osd.dms.myflorida.com/directories).

6. Are there any required signal design intersection layouts that must be adhered to?  
This question is not understood… the phrase “required signal design 
intersection layout” is not at all familiar to Traffic Engineering Division personnel.
Please rephrase and resubmit the question for clarification so it may be 
understood and answered.

7.  What forms need to be completed by the Contractor and the contractor’s team? The 
documents are on the Bay County web site for the solicitation listed as “required 
bid documents” see page 10 bid checklist for a list of documents. 

8. Do the 355 calendar days allowed for completion of the construction contract 
include weather days and any Special Event days such as Spring Break, Thunder 
Beach, etc.? See page 23 section 6h control of the work regarding compensation 
due to delays and page 32-33 schedule If so, will the Contractor be allowed to work 
during those Special Events timeframes, especially at the intersections with a state 
highway?  Concerning lane closure restrictions on the State Highway System 
(SHS), FDOT is the final authority.  Otherwise, the language appearing in the 
contract documents shall prevail.

9. Would the County consider extending the Bid Submittal date for two additional 
weeks? Construction materials prices are still fluctuating, and this extension would give 
the Contractor additional time to procure competitive materials and subcontracting 
pricing. See above Bid Deadline extension. However due to grant related time 
constraints bid due date cannot be extended for 2 weeks.

10.  One hundred (100) days for design survey, utilities survey, signalization design, any 
alternate signalization design discussions, geotechnical investigation, Subsurface Utility 

23-10 Traffic Signal Mast Arm Hardening Project HMGP 4399-119-R 2 of 71



Exploration (SUE), Utility Coordination, and County design review times, in our opinion, 
does not seem to be a viable schedule.  Is this 100-day design schedule flexible?  Due 
to grant related time constraints entire project must be completed no later than 
September 30, 2024.

11. How long does the County anticipate that Phase 2 funding approval (after design is 
approved) will take? Is the Contractor’s 355-day construction schedule clock ticking 
during the time needed to procure funding and then proceed to Phase 2?  See page 29 
of the ITB documents “Design shall be completed within 100 calendar days and 
construction shall be 355 calendar days AFTER FEMA/State approval of Engineer 
stamped design. A notice to proceed for each phase will be issued.”

12. What is the proposed budget for this project?  Budget estimate is $3,172,400.00

13. If utility relocation is necessary as required by the County-approved design plans, 
will the construction schedule be extended to accommodate any required Utility 
Relocation. The Contractor has no control over the Utility Agency Owner (UAO) 
relocation work schedules.  Due to grant related time constraints entire project 
must be completed no later than September 30, 2024. 

14. Who is responsible for paying for any required Utility Relocation that is not covered 
by existing agreement or current easement agreement?  There is no provision for the 
payment of utility relocation costs in the contract. 

15. Are there any requirements for the design that are not specified in the FDOT 
Standards and Specifications? (Cabinet Type, Controller, spare conduit, number of pull 
boxes, etc.). There are no requirements beyond what is specifically expressed in 
the contract documents.

16. Please confirm that no existing signal equipment/infrastructure can be reused.  
There are no requirements beyond what is specifically expressed in the contract 
documents.

17. Once the above questions are responded to, will the County please allow additional 
time for follow-up questions?  See above Questions Due Date extension.

All respondents shall acknowledge receipt of this addendum by signing and submitting, 
with their proposal, the addendum acknowledgement form included in the proposal 
package. 

Regards, 

Scott Nabers 
Contract Administrator 
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          "General Decision Number: FL20230158 01/06/2023

Superseded General Decision Number: FL20220158

State: Florida

Construction Type: Highway

County: Bay County in Florida.

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

Note: Contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act are generally
required to pay at least the applicable minimum wage rate
required under Executive Order 14026 or Executive Order 13658.
Please note that these Executive Orders apply to covered
contracts entered into by the federal government that are
subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but do not apply to
contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts,
including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(2)-(60).

______________________________________________________________
|If the contract is entered    |. Executive Order 14026      |
|into on or after January 30,  |  generally applies to the   |
|2022, or the contract is      |  contract.                  |
|renewed or extended (e.g., an |. The contractor must pay    |
|option is exercised) on or    |  all covered workers at     |
|after January 30, 2022:       |  least $16.20 per hour (or  |
|                              |  the applicable wage rate   |
|                              |  listed on this wage        |
|                              |  determination, if it is    |
|                              |  higher) for all hours      |
|                              |  spent performing on the    |
|                              |  contract in 2023.          |
|______________________________|_____________________________|
|If the contract was awarded on|. Executive Order 13658      |
|or between January 1, 2015 and|  generally applies to the   |
|January 29, 2022, and the     |  contract.                  |
|contract is not renewed or    |. The contractor must pay all|
|extended on or after January  |  covered workers at least   |
|30, 2022:                     |  $12.15 per hour (or the    |
|                              |  applicable wage rate listed|
|                              |  on this wage determination,|
|                              |  if it is higher) for all   |
|                              |  hours spent performing on  |
|                              |  that contract in 2023.     |
|______________________________|_____________________________|

The applicable Executive Order minimum wage rate will be
adjusted annually. If this contract is covered by one of the
Executive Orders and a classification considered necessary for
performance of work on the contract does not appear on this
wage determination, the contractor must still submit a
conformance request.

Additional information on contractor requirements and worker
protections under the Executive Orders is available at
http://www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number     Publication Date
          0              01/06/2023

  SUFL2013-019 08/19/2013
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                                  Rates          Fringes

CARPENTER........................$ 13.71 **          0.00
  
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE   
FINISHER, Includes Form Work.....$ 11.61 **          0.00
  
ELECTRICIAN......................$ 22.11             0.00
  
HIGHWAY/PARKING LOT STRIPING:   
 Operator (Striping Machine).....$ 13.81 **          0.00
  
HIGHWAY/PARKING LOT STRIPING:   
 Painter.........................$ 12.13 **          0.00
  
IRONWORKER, ORNAMENTAL...........$ 13.48 **          0.00
  
IRONWORKER, REINFORCING..........$ 16.24             0.00
  
IRONWORKER, STRUCTURAL...........$ 16.42             0.00
  
LABORER (Traffic Control   
Specialist)......................$ 11.51 **          0.00
  
LABORER:  Asphalt, Includes   
Raker, Shoveler, Spreader and   
Distributor......................$ 10.91 **          0.00
  
LABORER:  Common or General......$ 10.16 **          0.00
  
LABORER:  Flagger................$ 10.25 **          0.00
  
LABORER:  Grade Checker..........$ 10.83 **          0.00
  
LABORER:  Mason Tender -   
Cement/Concrete..................$ 12.81 **          0.00
  
LABORER:  Pipelayer..............$ 11.70 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:    
Backhoe/Excavator/Trackhoe.......$ 13.13 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Bobcat/Skid   
Steer/Skid Loader................$ 14.07 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Broom/Sweeper.........$ 11.10 **          1.89
  
OPERATOR:  Bulldozer.............$ 14.29 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Concrete Finishing   
Machine..........................$ 15.44 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Crane.................$ 21.23             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Curb Machine..........$ 19.21             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Distributor...........$ 14.54 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Drill.................$ 14.78 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Forklift..............$ 12.29 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Gradall...............$ 14.71 **          0.00
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OPERATOR:  Grader/Blade..........$ 16.50             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Loader................$ 11.66 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Mechanic..............$ 15.84 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Milling Machine.......$ 13.29 **          1.92
  
OPERATOR:  Oiler.................$ 16.32             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Paver  (Asphalt,   
Aggregate, and Concrete).........$ 12.43 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Piledriver............$ 17.23             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Post Driver   
(Guardrail/Fences)...............$ 17.02             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Roller................$ 10.99 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Scraper...............$ 12.01 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Screed................$ 13.13 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Trencher..............$ 16.04 **          0.00
  
PAINTER:  Spray..................$ 19.57             0.00
  
TRAFFIC SIGNALIZATION:    
Traffic Signal Installation......$ 15.44 **          0.00
  
TRUCK DRIVER:  Dump Truck........$ 10.77 **          0.00
  
TRUCK DRIVER:  Flatbed Truck.....$ 14.28 **          0.00
  
TRUCK DRIVER:  Lowboy Truck......$ 13.35 **          0.00
  
TRUCK DRIVER:  Slurry Truck......$ 11.96 **          0.00
  
TRUCK DRIVER:  Water Truck.......$ 12.90 **          0.00
----------------------------------------------------------------

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing
operation to which welding is incidental.

================================================================

** Workers in this classification may be entitled to a higher
minimum wage under Executive Order 14026 ($16.20) or 13658
($12.15).  Please see the Note at the top of the wage
determination for more information.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave
for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the
Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any
solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017.  If this
contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide
employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours
they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year.
Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their
own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including
preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other
health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons
resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is
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like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  Additional information
on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO
is available at
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/government-contracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within
the scope of the classifications listed may be added after
award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses
(29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

----------------------------------------------------------------

The body of each wage determination lists the classification
and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the
cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage
determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical
order of ""identifiers"" that indicate whether the particular
rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local),
a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate
(weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed
in dotted lines beginning with characters other than ""SU"" or
""UAVG"" denotes that the union classification and rate were
prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example:
PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of
the union which prevailed in the survey for this
classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198
indicates the local union number or district council number
where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number,
005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing
the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the
most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1,
2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate
changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing
this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the ""SU"" identifier indicate that
no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and
the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average
rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that
classification.  As this weighted average rate includes all
rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and
non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates
the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average
calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates
the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which
these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007
in the example, is an internal number used in producing the
wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion
date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a
new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers
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Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate
that no single majority rate prevailed for those
classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the
classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010
08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union
average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in
the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage
determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date
for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of
each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current
negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is
based.

----------------------------------------------------------------

                   WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can
be:

*  an existing published wage determination
*  a survey underlying a wage determination
*  a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on
   a wage determination matter
*  a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests
for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour
National Office because National Office has responsibility for
the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this
initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described
in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal
process described here, initial contact should be with the
Branch of Construction Wage Determinations.  Write to:

            Branch of Construction Wage Determinations
            Wage and Hour Division
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an
interested party (those affected by the action) can request
review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator
(See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

            Wage and Hour Administrator
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the
interested party's position and by any information (wage
payment data, project description, area practice material,
etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an
interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative
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Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board).  Write to:

            Administrative Review Board
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

================================================================

          END OF GENERAL DECISIO"
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S TA T E  O F  F L O R I D A  

D I V I S I O N  O F  E M E R G E N C Y  M A N A G E M E N T 
Ron DeSantis 
Governor

Kevin Guthrie 
Director 

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S  Telephone: 850-815-4000 STATE LOGISTICS RESPONSE CENTER 
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r e c t o r s  R ow  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0 O r la nd o ,  F L  3 28 0 9 - 56 31  

 

Mr. Keith Bryant  
840 West 11th Street 
Panama City, FL 32401 

Re: Project #4399-119-R, Bay County Board of County Commissioners  

Dear Mr. Bryant: 

Enclosed is the executed Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) contract 
number H0754 between Bay County Board of County Commissioners and the Division of 
Emergency Management.   

Please email all Requests for Reimbursement (Attachment D) to the project 
manager at Dawn.Davis@em.myflorida.com.  The Project Manager for this contract is: 

Dawn Davis, Project Manager 
Florida Division of Emergency Management 
2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 

If you have any specific questions regarding the contract or the Request for 
Reimbursement form, please contact Dawn Davis at 850 228-7111. 

Respectfully, 

Miles E. Anderson  
Bureau Chief, Mitigation 
State Hazard Mitigation Officer 

Enclosure 

for

Laura 
Dhuwe

Digitally signed by Laura Dhuwe 
DN: cn=Laura Dhuwe, o=DEM, 
ou=Mitigation, 
email=Laura.Dhuwe@em.myflorida.co
m, c=US 
Date: 2022.01.10 09:43:38 -05'00'
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for

1/10/2022

Laura Dhuwe
Digitally signed by Laura Dhuwe 
DN: cn=Laura Dhuwe, o=DEM, 
ou=Mitigation, 
email=Laura.Dhuwe@em.myflorida.com, 
c=US 
Date: 2022.01.10 09:43:12 -05'00'
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Vendor Name Contact Address City State Phone Number

Above All Construction, LLC. James Sansom 12413 two trail rd Fountain FL 850-866-9466

An-Kar Contracting Services, Inc William Walters 850-557-3421

Brizo Construction Taryn Keeler 9100 Canniff St Houston TX (713) 325-2283

C-Miles Construction, Inc. Roger Granger 1625 Airport Road Panama City FL 850-747-1826

DLM Contractors Kevin Downing 120 Royal Palm Blvd panama city beach FL 850-832-5234

DRMP, Inc. Lisa Greene 941 Lake Baldwin Ln., Ste. Orlando FL 407-896-0594

Emerald Coast Striping, LLC. Jason Bense 1901 N. East Ave Panama City FL 850-215-4875

FASTSIGNS of Lynn Haven Sandi Sims 1812 S. Hwy 77 City Lynn Haven FL 850-730-1414

Gulf Coast Utility Contractors Tammi Swearington 13938 Hwy 77 Southport FL 850-265-9166

Gulf Group, Inc. Kyle Bordelon 850-785-0592

HUGHES SUPPLY INC. Emily Cox 335 North Ingraham Lakeland FL 863-838-3355

James & Moore and Associates Job Gammons 653 W 23rd St Panama City FL 850-902-4701

LAW ENFORCEMENT SUPPLY CO, INC LES BIDS 3009 HWY 77 Suite G PANAMA CITY FL 800-326-4019

McCormick Contracting Co., Inc. Stacey Marshall 850-265-5320

Metric Engineering Inc. Mariley Perez 13940 SW 136 Street Miami FL 305-235-5098

Murdock Investments, LLC Christopher Murdock 6509 Hwy 22 Panama City FL 850-270-2715

Quality Gates & Openers, Inc. Walter Clement 1510 Airport Rd Panama City FL 850-625-2611

Revelation Construction LLC Glenn Powell 1907 E 9th St Panama City FL 850-896-7296

Robbins Metal Fab LLC Johnathan Robbins 850-387-9679

Royal American Construction 

Company, Inc. Steve Summerbell 1002 W. 23rd St., Ste. 400 Panama City FL 850-769-8981

Signal Maintenance & Services, Inc. Crystal Michel 8821 Tracy Way Panama City FL 850-527-3776

Southern Earth Sciences, Inc. Trey Wilson 7500 McElvey Road Panama City Beach FL 850-769-4773

Southern Supply Store Inc Mark Cordrey 1517 E 11th St Panama City FL 850-872-9691

Straight Arrow Development Inc Tommy McCormick 7126 Campflowers RD Youngstown FL 850-722-8398

Terry Gagnon dba Gagnon's Sign Depot Terry Gagnon 1720 West 15th Street Panama City FL (850) 740-3576

The Print Shop Inc. James Buell 8111 Panama City Beach Panama City Beach FL 850-234-8284

actionfire&safetyequipment Debbie Woolf 226 Coleman St. Crestview FL 850-682-2150
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